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October 23, 2003

Securities and Exchange Commission
450 Fifth Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20549

Re:  AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds
Dear Sir or Madam:

Enclosed please find a copy of a class action complaint filed in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York on October 20, 2003 by Tracy
Silverman against the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds listed in Appendix A (the

“Funds”) and the Funds’ affiliated parties listed in Appendix B. The Funds make this
filing pursuant to Section 33 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

Sincerely,

mma

Paul M. Miller

Enclosure
CC: Sh tD
Doglllsl\:;ick Elgsu gliese /PQ@CESSE D
\  DEC 08 2003
THOMSON
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. APPENDIX A
AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds
Name Registration CIK No.
No.
AllianceBernstein Growth & Income Fund, Inc. 811-00126 0000029292
AllianceBernstein Health Care Fund, Inc. 811-09329 0001085421
AllianceBernstein Disciplined Value Fund, Inc. 811-09687 | 0001090504
AllianceBernstein Mid-Cap Growth Fund, Inc. 811-00204 | 0000019614
AllianceBernstein Real Estate Investment Fund, Inc. 811-07707 0001018368
The AllianceBernstein Portfolios 811-05088 0000812015
- AllianceBernstein Growth Fund
AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series, Inc. 811-09176 0001062417
- Biotechnology Portfolio
- Technology Portfolio
- Premier Portfolio
AllianceBernsteinTrust 811-10221 0001129870
- AllianceBernstein Small Cap Value Fund
- AllianceBernstein Value Fund
- AllianceBernstein Global Value Fund
- AllianceBernstein International Value Fund
AllianceBernstein Premier Growth Fund, Inc. 811-06730 0000889508
AllianceBernstein Quasar Fund, Inc. 811-01716 0000081443
AllianceBernstein Technology Fund, Inc. 811-03131 0000350181
AllianceBermnstein Utility Income Fund, Inc. 811-07916 0000910036
AllianceBernstein Balanced Shares, Inc. 811-00134 0000069752
AllianceBernstein Blended Style Series, Inc. 811-21081 0001172221
- U.S. Large Cap Portfolio
AllianceBernstein All Asia Investment Fund, Inc. 811-08776 | 0000930438
AllianceBernstein Greater China 97 Fund, Inc. 811-08201 0001038457
AllianceBernstein International Premier Growth Fund, Inc. 811-08527 0001050658
AllianceBernstein Global Small Cap Fund, Inc. 811-01415 | 0000095669
AllianceBernstein New Europe Fund, Inc. 811-06028 0000859605
AllianceBernstein Worldwide Privatization Fund, Inc. 811-08426 0000920701
AllianceBernstein Americas Government Income Trust, Inc. 811-06554 0000883676
AllianceBernstein Bond Fund, Inc. 811-02383 0000003794
- Corporate Bond Portfolio
- Quality Bond Portfolio
- U.S. Government Portfolio
AllianceBernstein Emerging Market Debt Fund, Inc. 811-08188 | 0000915845
AllianceBernstein Global Strategic Income Trust, Inc. 811-07391 0001002718
AllianceBernstein High Yield Fund, Inc. 811-09160 | 0001029843
AllianceBernstein Multi-Market Strategy Fund, Inc. 811-06251 0000873067




Sanford C. Bernstein Fund, Inc.

- Short Duration Portfolio

Intermediate California Municipal Portfolio

Intermediate Diversified Municipal Portfolio
Intermediate New York Municipal Portfolio

811-05555

0000832808

AllianceBernstein Municipal Income Fund, Inc.
- National Porfolio

California Portfolio

Insured California Portfolio

Insured National Portfolio

- New York Portfolio

811-04791

0000798737

AllianceBernstein Municipal Income Fund II
- Arizona Portfolio

- Florida Portfolio

- Massachusetts Portfolio

- Michigan Portfolio

- Minnesota Portfolio

- New Jersey Portfolio

- Ohio Portfolio

- Pennsylvania Portfolio

- Virginia Portfolio

811-07618

0000899774




APPENDIX B

A'ffiliated Parties of AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds

Alliance Capital Management L.P. and Portfolio
Manager

Name CIK No. Registration | IARD No.
No.
Alliance Capital Management Holding L.P. 0000825313 | 001-09818 106998
801-32361
Alliance Capital Management Corporation N/A 801-39910 107445
Alliance Capital Management L.P. N/A 801-56720 108477
AXA Financial, Inc. 0000880002 | 001-11166 N/A
Gerald Malone, Senior Vice President of N/A N/A N/A

00250.0073 #437360




SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW

TRACY SILVERMAN On Behalf of Herself and
All Others Similarly Situated,

Plaintiff,
Vs,

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GROWTH & INCOME
FUND, ALLTIANCEBERNSTEIN HEALTH
CARE FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
DISCIPLINED VALUE FUND, :
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MID-CAP GROWTH
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REAL
ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GROWTH FUND,

- ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
SERIES BIOTECHNOLOGY PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SMALL CAP VALUE
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN PREMIER
GROWTH FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
SELECT INVESTOR SERIES TECHNOLOGY
PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN VALUE
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN QUASAR
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN '
TECHNOLOGY FUND,

ALLIAN CEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
SERIES PREMIER PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN UTILITY INCOMI'
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BALANCED
SHARES, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
DISCIPLINED VALUE FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL VALUE
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

- INTERNATIONAL VALUE FUND,

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REAL ESTATE

INVESTMENT FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

SMALL CAP VALUE FUND,

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN UTILITY INCOME -

FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN VALUE

FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BLENDED

v\_'/\_/\/\_/\_/\_/\_/vuvvvV\./\./\../vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv‘vvvvv\#v
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JURY TRIAL DEMANDED




STYLE SERIES - U.S. LARGE CAP
PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
ALLASIA INVESTMENT FUND, .
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL VALUE
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GREATER
CHINA ‘97 FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERNATIONAL PREMIER GROWTH FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERNATIONAL
VALUE FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
GLOBAL SMALL CAP FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN NEW EUROPE FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN WORLDWIDE
PRIVATIZATION FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
SERIES BIOTECHNOLOGY PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR -
SERIES PREMIER PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
SERIES TECHNOLOGY PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN AMERICAS
GOVERNMENT INCOME TRUST,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND
CORPORATE BOND PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND
QUALITY BOND PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND U.S.
GOVERNMENT PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN EMERGING MARKET
'DEBT FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
GLOBAL STRATEGIC INCOME TRUST,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN HIGH YIELD FUND,
~ ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MULTI-MARKET
STRATEGY TRUST, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
SHORT DURATION, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERMEDIATE CALIFORNIA MUNI
PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERMEDIATE DIVERSIFIED MUNI
PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERMEDIATE NEW YORK MUNI
PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI
INCOME FUND NATIONAL PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND ARIZONA PORTFOLIO,

N N N N S M S il N N N N e N e N N e N S Nl S S e N e S N S M M N N N e N M e s N e s S s

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
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FUND CALIFORNIA PORTFOLIO, .
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND INSURED CALIFORNIA PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND INSURED NATIONAL PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND FLORIDA PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND MASSACHUSETTS PORTFOLIO,

' ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND MICHIGAN PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND MINNESOTA PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND NEW JERSEY PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND NEW YORK PORTFOLIO,
ALLTANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND OHIO PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME

'FUND PENNSYLVANIA PORTFOLIO,

- ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME

FUND VIRGINIA PORTFOLIO,

COLLEGEBOUNDFUNDSM (collectively. known_

as “ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN FUNDS”),

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GROWTH & INCOME

- FUND, INC,, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN HEALTH

CARE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

DISCIPLINED VALUE FUND, INC.,

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MID-CAP GROWTH

FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REAL

ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND, INC,,

- ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GROWTH FUND,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT
INVESTOR SERIES BIOTECHNOLOGY
PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
SMALL CAP VALUE FUND, INC., :

'ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN PREMIER GROWTH
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT
INVESTOR SERIES TECHNOLOGY = .
PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN -
VALUE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
QUASAR FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
TECHNOLOGY FUND, INC.,

[Caption continues on next page]




ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
SERIES PREMIER PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN UTILITY INCOME
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
BALANCED SHARES, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN DISCIPLINED VALUE
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL
VALUE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERNATIONAL VALUE FUND, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REAL ESTATE
INVESTMENT FUND, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SMALL CAP VAL UE
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN UTILITY -
INCOME FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
VALUE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
BLENDED STYLE SERIES - U.S. LARGE CAP
PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
ALL-ASIA INVESTMENT FUND, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL VALUE
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
GREATER CHINA ‘97 FUND, INC.,

. ALLTANCEBERNSTEIN INTERNATIONAL
PREMIER GROWTH FUND, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERNATIONAL

VALUE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

GLOBAL SMALL CAP FUND, INC.,

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN NEW EUROPE FUND,

INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN WORLDWIDE
PRIVATIZATION FUND, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
SERIES BIOTECHNOLOGY PORTFOLIO,

- INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT
INVESTOR SERIES PREMIER PORTFOLIO,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT
INVESTOR SERIES TECHNOLOGY
PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
AMERICAS GOVERNMENT INCOME TRUST,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND
CORPORATE BOND PORTFOLIO, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND
QUALITY BOND PORTFOLIO, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND U.S.
GOVERNMENT PORTFOLIO, INC,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN EMERGING MARKET
DEBT FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

[Caption continues on next page]




GLOBAL STRATEGIC INCOME TRUST, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN HIGH YIELD FUND,
INC., ALLTANCEBERNSTEIN '
MULTIMARKET STRATEGY TRUST, INC.,
"ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SHORT DURATION,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

- INTERMEDIATE CALIFORNIA MUNI

PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERMEDIATE DIVERSIFIED MUNI
PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERMEDIATE NEW YORK MUNI
PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
MUNI INCOME FUND NATIONAL
PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
MUNI INCOME FUND ARIZONA
PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN . -
MUNI INCOME FUND CALIFORNIA
PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
'MUNI INCOME FUND INSURED
CALIFORNIA PORTFOLIO, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
~FUND INSURED NATIONAL PORTFOLIO,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND FLORIDA PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME ‘
FUND MASSACHUSETTS PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLJANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND MICHIGAN PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
- FUND MINNESOTA PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND NEW JERSEY PORTFOLIG, INC.,
'ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND NEW YORK PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
'FUND OHIO PORTFOLIO, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND PENNSYLVANIA PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND VIRGINIA PORTFOLIO, INC.
(collectively known as “ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
REGISTRANTS”), ALLIANCE CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT HOLDING L.P., ALLIANCE
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT L.P., ALLIANCE

[Caption continues on next page]




CAPITAL MANAGEMENT CORPORATION,
AXA FINANCIAL, INC., GERALD MALONE,
CHARLES SCHAFFRAN, CANARY CAPITAL
PARTNERS, LLC, CANARY INVESTMENT
MANAGEMENT, LLC, CANARY CAPITAL
PARTNERS, LTD., and JOHN DOES 1-100;,

Defendants.

Plaintiff alleges the following based upon the investigation of plaintiff’ s counsel, which

~ included a review of United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) filings as well
as other regulatory filings and réports and advisories about tﬁe AllianceBermstein Funds (as
defined in the caption of this case, above), press releases, Valfld media reports about the
AllianceBernstein Funds. Plaintiff believes that substantial additional evidentiary support will

exist for the allegations set forth herein after a reasonable opportunity for discovery.

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. This is a federal class action on behalf of a class consisting of ali persons other
than defendant_s who pﬁtchased of otherwise acquired shares or other ownership units of one or
more of the 1nﬁtuai fundé in the AllianceBermnstein family of funds (i.e., the AllianceBernstein
Funds as defined in the caption, above) between October 2, 1998 and September 29, 2003;
inclusive, and who were damégcd thereby (the “Class™). Plaintiff seeks to pursue rgmedies
Lmde.r the Securities_ Actof 1,933 (the “Sec‘uritie‘s Act™), the Secuﬁties Exchange Act of 1934 (the
‘-‘Excha.nge Act”) and the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (the “Investment Advisers Act”). |

2. This action charges defendants with engaging in an unlawful and deceitful course
- of conduct designed fo ‘improperly financially advantage defendants to the detriment of 151ai11tiff

and the other members of the Class. As part and parcel of defendants’ unlawful conduct, the




Fund Defendants, as defined below, il;iclear contravention of their fiduciary responsibilities, and
“disclosure obligations, failed to properly disclose:
(@) That select favored customers weré allowed to enga.gé n illegal “late
trading,” a practice, mioré fully described herein, whereby an investdr may place an order to
 purchase fund sha‘r.es after 4:00 p.m. and have that order filled at that ‘day’s closing net asset
' va]ue;'and | |
(b) That sele;t favored cﬁstdmers were improp‘erly allowed to “time’;their
‘ mﬁtual, fund trades. .S.uch ‘timing, as more fully described herein, ilnpropei'ly allows an investor
-to trade in and out of a mutual fuhd to exploif short‘—tenﬂ moves and inefficiencies in the manner
in which the mutual finds price their shares.
3. On Sgptember 30, 2003, béfore the market opened, Alliance Capital Management,
L.P. (“Alliance Capital Management”) issued a press release révealing that it had been contacted
by the Securities and Exchaﬁge Commission and therNew York State Attorney vGener‘al’s Office
in connection with the regulators’ investigation of the mut‘ual ﬁmd industry’s practices of late
- tradiﬁg and market timing. Alliance Capital Management announced that as a result of its own'
internal investigation, it had identiﬁed conflicts of i_nterests with respeét to market timing
txranséctions; leading fo the suspension of defendant Gerﬁld.Malone, a portfolio hanager of
éertainAl].ianceBenistein Funds and defendant Charles Schaffran, an exeéutive salesperson of'
A]..Iiénce hedge funds.
4, Subsequéntly, on October 1, 2003, The Walf Street Jf;urnal reported that
' defend.an'ts Malone an& Schaffran allowed certain investors to make rapid trades in
AllianceB ernstéin Funds that were ménaged by Malohe, in exchauge for l‘arge investments in

certain Alliance hedge funds also managed by Malone. Moreover, the article stated that




according to documents produced by Alliance Capital Management pursuant to a subpoena by
the Attorney General’s Office, non-defendént Edward Stern placed late trades through Bank of
America for certain AllianceBernstein Funds. Bank of America has been ﬁamed as a defendant
in numerous recently filed actions concerning its alleged participation in a wrongful and illegal
scheme which allowed the Canary Defendants, defined herein, to engage in late trading and
market timing in mutual fund families, including Janus, One Group; Sfrong, and Nations ﬁ;nds.
As aresult of defeﬁdahts’ wrorigful and illegal misconduct in AllianceBernstein Funds, plaintiff

and members of the Class suffered damages.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
. !

5. This Couft has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to § 27
of the Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. § 78aa); Section 22 of the Securities Act (15 U.S.C.

§ 77v); Section 80b-14 of the Investment Advisers Act (15 U.é.C._§ 80b-14); and 28 U.S.C.
§§ 1331, 1337.

6. Many of the acﬁ charged herein, includ.ing the prei)aration and dissemjnétion Qf
materially fa_lse and misieading information, occurred in substantial part in this District.
Defendants conducted other substantial business within this District and many Class members
reside within this Distfict. Defendé.nts Alliance Capital Management Holding L.P., Alliance
Caiaitai_ Management L.P., Alliance Capital Managerhent Corporation, and AXA Financial, Inc.

' maihtain Qfﬁcés in this Disﬁict.

7. In con#1ection Mth the acts alleged in this complaint, defendants, directly or
indirectly, used tﬁe means and instrumehtalities of interstate commerce, iricluding, but not
limited to, the mails, interstate telephone communicatidns and the facilities of the national

securities markets.




PARTIES
8. Plaintiff Tracy Silverman, as set forth in her certiﬁcation, which is attached bereto
and incorporated by refcréxlce herein, purchased units of the AllianceBemstein Growth &
Ibncome,Fund during the Class Period and has been damaged thereby.
9. The AllianceBernstein Growth & In}con.]e Fund is among .lhe AllianceBemstein
Funds as defined in the caption above.
10.  Each of the AllianceBernstein Funds, inclﬁding ihe AllianceBetnstein Growth &
Income Fund, are mutual funds that are regulated by the Investment‘ Company Act of 1940, that
are managed by defendant Alliance Capital Management L.P., and that buy, hold, and sell shares
or other ownership units that are subject to the misconduct alleged in this complaint. -
11. Defendant Alliance Capxtal Management Holdmg LP.( Alhance Holding™) is a
pubhcly-traded holdmg company which p10v1des investment management services through
defendant Alliance Capital Management. Alliance Holding is incorporated in De],aware with its
principal ialéce of business located at 1345 Avenue of the Americas, New York; New York
10105. Alliance Holding is the ultimate parent of the AllianceBernstein Funds and the parent |
company of, and controls Alliance Capital Management and the AllianceBernstein Registrants.
As of March 31, 2003, Alliénce Holding owned approximately 30.7 pefcent of the outstanding
shares of Alliancé Capital Mallégelnent. | |
S12. Defendaﬁt Alliance Capital Management is registered as an _invgstment adviser
| under the Investment Advisers Aét and managed and advised the AllianceBernstein Funds
thr,otighout the Class Pcriod., During this period, Alliance Capital Management had ultimate
respons1b111ty for overseeing the day to-day management of the AlllanceBemsteln Funds

Alliance Capltal Management is located at 1345 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York

10105.




13. Defendant Alliance Capitél Management Corporation (“Alliance Corporatibn”) is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of defendant AXA Financial, Inc. (“AXA”), and the ge;ieral partner
of defendénts Alliance Holding and Alliance Capital Managemént. Alliance Corp>orat-ion‘ o.wns‘
100,0'00 partnership units in Aliiance Holding, and a | percent general partnership interest in
Alliance Capital Managément. Alliancé Corporation is located at 140 Broa&way, New Yor,k;
New York 1 QOOS. | |

14.  Defendant AXA, a unit of Europe’s second largest insurer AXA SA, is an
international financial services organization which provides financial advisory, insurance and
investment management products and services worldwide. AXA isa Delaware corporation and
maintains its principal pléce of busineés at 1290 Avenue of the Americé.s, New York, New York
10104, AXA controls Alliance Capital Management by virtue of ifs general partnership interests
through, Alliance Corporation and its 55.7 percent economic interest in Alliance Capital |
Management as of Mérch 31, 2003.

15, Defendgnts AllianceBerpstein Registrants are the regiétrants and issuers of the
éhares of the AilianéeBemstein Funds, and wevre actiﬁe partiqibants ‘in the unlawful scheme _ |
alleged herein. . |

16.  Defendant Gefald Malone was at all relevant times a Senior Vice Presid.ént at
Alliance Capital Management and a portfolio manéger of several AllianceB‘ernste'm F‘unds,
including the AllianceBernstein Tecimology Fund, and Alliance hedge funds, and was an active
participant in the unlawful scheﬁw alleged her»ein. |

| 17. Defendaut Charles"Schaffl.fan was at all relevallt times a marketing executive at '
- Alliance Capital Managémem who sold Alliance hedge funds to inves;tors,- and was ﬁn active

participant in the unlawful scheme alleged herein.




18.  Alliance I-Iolding, Alliance .Corp‘oration, Alliance Capital Management, AXA, the
AllianceBernstein Registrants, and the AllianceBernstein Funds are refef.red to collectively
hérein as the “Fund Defendants.” | |

19.  Defendant Canary Capital Partners, LLC, is a New Jersey limited ltability
company with offices at 400 Plaza Drivé, Secaucus, New Jersey. Canary Capital Partners, LLC,
was an active paliicipallt in the unlawful scheme al.leged herein. |

20. - Defendant Canary Investment Mmmgemeni, LLC, isaNew Jersley limited
_liabﬁliry company, with offices at 400 Plaza Drive, Secaucus, New Jersey. Canary Il;vestrnent
.M‘anagemen‘t, LLC, was an active participant in the unlawful scheme alléged herein.

2], Defendant Canary Capital Partners, Ltd., is a Bermuda limited liability company.
Canary Cébital Partners, Ltd., was an active participant in thé unlawful scheme alleged herein,

22. Defendants Canary Capital Partners, LLC; Canary Capital Partners, Ltd.; and |

~Canary Investment Management, LLC are collectively referred to herein as the “Canary
. Defendants.”

23.  The true names and capacities of defendants sued herein as John Does 1 through
100 are other active participants with the Fund Defendants in the widespread unlawful conduct
alleged herein whos: identities have yet to be ascertained. Include'd‘among.st the John Doe
defendants are certain Alliance hedge funds that hayé been referenced in news articles in
connection with the misconduct alleged herein and have yet to be identified. Such defendants
weré secretly permitted to engage in improper late trading and timing at the expense of ordinary
AllianéeBernstein Funds investors, such as plaintiff and the other members of the Class, in

exchange for which these John Doe defendants provided remuneration to the Fund Defendants.




Plaintiff will seek to amend this complaint to state the true names and capéci.ties of said

defendants when they have been ascertained.

PLAINTIFF’S CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

24, | Plaintiff brings this ac;t1011 as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil
Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a Class, consisting. of all persons or entities who
purcha.éed or otherwise acquired shares of the AllianceBernstein Growtﬁ & Income Fund, or like
interests in AllianceBernstein Funds, between October 2, 1998 and September 29, 2003,
'inclusi.ve, and who were damaged thereby; Plaintiff and each of the Class members purchased
shares or other ownership mﬁts n Alliancc—:Berns.tein Funds pursuaht to a registration statement
and prospectus. The registration éiatements and prospectuses pursuant to which plaintiff and the
other Class members purchased their shérés or other ownership units 111 the AllianceBernstein
Funds, are referred ‘to é@llectively herein as the “Prospecluées.” Excluded from the Class are
| defendants, members of their immediéfe families and theirtlvega} representatives, heirs, successors
or assi gns and any entity in which defendants bave or had a éo_nﬁolling interest. o

25.  The members of thé Class are sQ numerous that joinder of all members is :
impracticable. While the exact number of Class members is unknown to plaintiff at this time and
ca‘n only be ascertained throUgh..appropliate _discovery, plaintiff believes that there are thousands
 of members in the proposed Class. Record o@’ners and other members of the Class nluay be -
identified from records maintained by the AllianceBernstein Fl‘mds‘ and may be notified of the
| pendency of this action by.mail, using the form of notice simﬂar to that custo'marily used in

securities class actions.




26.  Plaintiff’s claims are typfcal of the claims of the ﬁeﬁlbexs of the Class as all
members of the CIa;s are similarly affected by defendants’ wrongful conduct in violation of
federal law that is complained of herein. |

27. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately igrotect the interests of the membefs of the
Cléss and have retained counsel competent and experienced in class and securities litigation.

28. Conuﬁon questi_oﬁs of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and
pre_dominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class. Among the
questions of law and fact common to the Class are:

()  whether the federal secuﬁties laws were violated by defende__mts’ acts as
alleged herein; |

(b) whether statements made by defendants to the investing public during the
Claés Period misrepresented material facts about the business, operations and financial
statements of the AlliauceBérnstein Funds; and

(c) to wl_xat extent fthe members of the Class have sustained damages and the
prope‘i" measure bf dmnageé.

29.  Aclass action‘_is superibr to all other available methods for the fair and efﬁcieﬁt
adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all ﬁleiﬁbers is impracticable. Furthermore, as
thé damages suffer§d by individual Ciass vmembers mﬁy be relatively small, the expense aﬁd -
burden of individual litigation make it v_irtua.lly -impossibl‘.e for members of the Class to |
individually redress th‘e wrongs done to them. There will be no difficulty in the managenient of

this action as a class action.




SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

Intmducﬁon: The Double Standard for Privileged Investors

30.  Mutual funds are meant to be long-térm investments and are therefore the favored
savings vehicles for many Americansf retirement and college ﬁmdi The AllianceBernstein
, Funds.were‘ no exception; the AllianceBernstein Funds’ website states: “4 little plamzing. g&es a
long way. Whatever your long-term goal, ﬁ)e can help you begin to plan a savings strategy. 1f
your goal is listed below, let us show you hon. I want to invést for a comfortable retirement.
['m saving for a college education. I'm saving toward a dream purcliaéé.” [Emﬁhasis'add”edv.]
31. Howe_vér, unbeknownst to investors, from at least as early as October 2, 1998 and
until September 29, 2003, inclusive, defendants engaged in ﬁ'audul.ent and wrongful schemes
_that epabled certain favored investors to reap many millions of dollars in profit, at thevexpensé of
the AllianceBernstein Funds’ invesiors, inclﬁding plaintiff and other members of the Ciass,
through secret and illegal after-hours trading and timed trading. In exchange for allowiﬁg and
| ‘facilitating' this imprbpsr conduct, the Fund Defendants reéeived substantial fees and other
remuneration for themselves and their affiliates té the detriment of plaintiff and the other
members of the Class who knew néthing of these illicit arrangenients. Specifically, Alliance
Capital Managemeﬁt, as manager of the AllianceBems&in Funds, and each of the relevant fﬁnd
managers, profited from fees Alliance Capital Management charged to the Alli.ance‘Bemstein
| Funds that were measured as a percentﬁge of the ‘fees under management. In cxchaﬁge for the
right to eﬁgage in illegal late frading and timing, which hurt pla{ ntiff and other Class memberé, :
by artificially and materially affecting the value of the AllianceBernstein Funds, the Canary
Deféndants, and the John Doe Défendants, égreed to park substantial assets in the Funds, trhcreby
| increasing the asséts u.nder Alli'anceB;e'rnstcin Funds’ maﬁagement and the fees paid to

AllianceBernstein Funds’ managers. The assets parked in the AllianceBernstein Funds in
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.exchange fér the ri ght to engage in late trading and timing have been referred to as “sticky
assets.” Furthermore, the Canary Defendants sec_reﬂy disguised additional, improper

‘ com;;ensatiori to the Fund Defendants as inté.rest payménts on monies Io.aned by the Fund
Defendants to the Canary Defendants for the purpose of financing the illegal scheme. The
synergy between the Fund Defendants band the CanarAbee'fend»anl;s hinged on ordinary investors’
misplaced trust in the integrity of mutual ﬁmd éompanies and allowed defendants to profit
handsomely at the expense‘of plaintiff and other mémbers of the Claés. |

Illegal Late Trading at the Expense of Plaintiff and Other Members of the Class

| 32. - “Late trading” exploits the unique way in Which mutual funds, including the
AIIianceBemstein Funds, set their prices. The daily price of mutual fund shares is generally
calculated once a day as of 4:00 p.m. EST. The price, knox;vn as the “Net Asset Value” or
“NAV,’; génerally reflects the clt‘)sing prices of the securities thét comprise a givén fund’s
~ portfolio, plus 'the value of any cash that the fund manager maintains for the ﬁmd. Orders to buy,
sel] or exch.angé mutual ﬁmd sliares placed at C;l' before 4:00 p.m. EST on a given ciay receive
that day’s price. Orders placed‘after 4:00 p.‘lln. EST are 51'1‘pp.ose.d to be filled using the following
day’s _pli.cé. Unbeknownst to plaintiff and other memBerS of the Class, and in violation of SEC
regulations; the Canary Defendants, and the John Doe D__efer;dants, secretly agreed.wi‘th the Fﬁnd
Defendants thzit orders they placed afteryv4:00 ﬁ.m. on a given day wouid illegally receive that
day’s price (as olg;posed to the next day‘s price, which the order would have received had it been - -
processéd lawﬁilly). This illegal conduct allowéd the Canary Defendanfs, and th‘e John Doe
Defendants, to capitalize on market-moving financial and other information that was made
public after the close of trading at 4:00 p.m. .while plaintiff and other ﬁlembers of the Class, who

" bought their AllianceBernstein Funds shares lawfully, could not.
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‘33. ' Here is an iljustration of how the favored treatment accorded to the Canary
Defendants took money, dollar-for-dollar,- out of the pockets of ordinary AllianceBernstein
Funds investors, such as plaintiff and the other members of the Class: A mutual fund’s share
price is determined to ‘be $10 per share for a given day. After 4:00 p.m., good news concerning
the fund’s f:onstituent securities may have been made public, causing the price of the fund’s
underlying securities to rise materially and, correspondingly, causiﬁg the next day’s NAV to rise
and increasing the fund shére price to $1'5. Under this example, ordinary investors placihg ém |
“order to buy aftér 4:00 p.m. on the day the news came out Would have their orders filled at $15,
the nexf day’s priée. Defendants’ scheme allowed the Canary Defendants, and other favored
vestors named herein, to purchase fund shares at the pre-4:00 p.m. price of $10 per share even
after the po}st-4:0‘0 pm néws came out and thé market had already slﬁrted to move ﬁpwa_rd.é.

| These favored investors were therefore guaratﬁeed a $5 per .share profit by buying after the
* market had closed at the lower price, available only to them, and then selling thé shafes the nex‘t‘
day at the higher price. Because all shares sold by invéstofs are bought by the respective fund,
which must sell shafes or use available cash for the pﬁrchase, Canary’s profit of $5 per unit
comes, doliar—for dol].ar,_ d_irectly from the other fund invéstqrs. This harmful practice, which
damaged plaintiff and other »mémbers of the Class, is completely undisclosed in the Pxospécmses
by ﬁvhich the All I_iénceBemstein Funds wére marketed and sold and pursuant to which plaintiff
vapd the other Class members purchésed their AllianceBemstein Funds securities. Morebver, late
trading is speciﬁcally p1'011ibited by the “forward pricing rule” eﬁbo&éd in SEC regulations. SEE
17 CFR §270.22¢-1(a). | |

Secret Timed Trading at the Expense of Plaintiff and Other Members of the Class

34 “Timing” is an arbitrage strategy involving short-term trading that can be used to

profit from mutual funds’ use of “stale” prices to calculate the value of securities held in the
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funds’ portfolio. These prices are “stale” because they do not necessarily reflect the “fair value”
of sﬁch securities as of the fime the NAYV is calculated. A typical example is a U.S. mutual fund
that holds Japanese securities. Because of the time zone difference, the Japanese market may
close at 2 a.n1. Ngw York time. If the U.S. mutual fund manager uses the closing prices of the
Japanese securities in his or iler fund to arrive at an NAV at 4 p.m, in New York, he or she is
relying on market information that is fourteen hours old. If there havé been positive market
moves during the New York trading day that will cause the Japanese market to rise when it I.ater
opens, the stale Japanés’e prices will not reflect that iﬁcrease, and the fund’s NAV will be |
artificially low. Put another way, the NAV would not reflect the true current market value of the '
stocks the fund holds. This and similar strategies are known as “time zone arbit;'age 7 |

35, Asimilar type of timing is possible in mutual funds that coﬁtain illiquid securities
such as high-yield bonds or small capitalization stocks. Here, the fact that some of the
AllianceBernstein Funds’ underlying securities ﬁ;ay not have traded for hours b¢f01'e the New
York closing time can render the fund’s NAYV stale and thus be susceptible to being timed. This |
1s sometimes known as “liquidity arbitrage.” R |

36\.“ ' Like late trading, efféctiVe timing captures an arbitrage profit.- And like late

trading, arbitrage profit from ﬁming comes dollar-for-dollar out of the pockéts of the long-term
linvestors: the timer steps in at the last moment and takes part of the buy-and-hold investors’
upside when the market goes up, so the next day’s NAV is reduced for those who are still in the
~ fund. If the timer sells short on bad days - as Canafy also did -- the arbitrage has the effect of
making the next day’s NAV lower than it would cherwise ha\‘/e beén_. thus 1négnifying the losses

that investors are experiencing in a declining market.
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37. Be51des the wealth tlansfex of arbitrage (called “dllutlon”), timers also harm their
target funds in a number of other ways. Thcy impose their transaction costs on the long-term |
m.vestors. Trades necessitated by timer redemptions can also result in the realization of taxable

capital gains at an undesirable time, or may result in managers having to sell stock into a falling

- market.

38, Itis widely aclmow]iedged that timing inures to the deﬁi111ent of long-term mutual
fund ‘invest_orsb and, because of this cietrixﬁental éffect, the Prospe?:tuses stated that timing is‘
monitored and that the Fund Dvefendants work to prevent it. "fhese statements wérc materially'
false and misleading because, not only did th¢ Fund Defendants allow the Canary and John Doe
Defendan“cs to time their trades, but, in ﬂle.cas;e of the Canary Defendants, tﬁey also provided a
trading blatform, provided the Canary Defendants proprietary information about the sfocks held
in the AllianceBernstein Funds, ‘ﬁnanced the timing arbitrage strategy and sought to profit and
did profit from it.

Defendants’ Fravndulent Scheme

- 39. OnSeptember 3, 2003, New York Attorney General Eliot Spitzer filed av '
complaint charging fraud, amongsf other violations of law, in connection with the unlawful
practices alleged herein and exposing the fraudulent and m..auipulative.practicss charged here
with the particularity that had resulted from a conﬁdeﬁtiéﬂ full-scale investigation (the “Spitzer |
Comp]aiﬁt”). ‘The Spitzer Complaint alleged, with regard fo the misconduct alleged herein, as
foI]owé: | |

Canary engaged in late trad ing on a daily basis from in or about
March 2000 until this office began its investigation in July of 2003.

It targeted dozens of mutual funds and extracted tens of millions of
dollars from them. During the declining market of 2001 and 2002,
it used late trading to, in effect, sell mutual fund shares short. This
caused the mutual funds to overpay for their shares as the market
went down, serving to magnify long-term investors’ losses. [. . .]
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40.

* [Bank of America] (1) set Canary up with a state-of-the-art

electronic trading platform [. . .] (2) gave Canary permission to

- time its own mutual fund family, the “Nations Funds”, (3)

provided Canary with approximately $300 million of credit to
finance this late trading and timing, and (4) sold Canary derivative
short positions it needed to time the funds as the market dropped.
In the process, Canary became one of Bank of America’s largest
customers. The relationship was mutually beneficial; Canary made
tens of millions through late trading and timing, while the various
parts of the Bank of America that serviced Canary made millions
themselves. - -

According to mutual fund orders and other records obtained.by'the Attorney

General’s Office, the Canary Defendants used an AlliancéBernstein Fund for its late trading and

market timing practices. According to the records, Canary sold shares of Alliance Growth &

Income Fund and invested the proceeds in an Alliance money market fund in a late trade -

submitted at 6:31 p.m. on January 13, 2003.

41.

On September 4, 2003, The Wall Street Journal published a front page sfory about

the Spitzer Complaint under the headline: “Spitzer Kicks Off Fund Pfobe With a $40 Million -

Settlement,” in which the New York Attorney General compared after-the-close trading to

“being allowed to bet on a horse race after the race was over,” and which indicated that the '

fraudulent practices enumerated in the Spitzer Complaint were just the tip of the iceberg. In this -

regard, the article stated:

[...] “The late trader,” he said, “is being allowed into the fund
after it has closed for the day to participate in a profit that would
otherwise have gone completely to the fund’s buy-and-hold
investors.”. :

In a statement, Mr. Spitzer said “the full extent of this

complicated fraud is not yet known,” but he asserted that “the
mutual-fund industry operates on a double standard” in which
certain traders “have been given the opportunity to manipulate

the system. They malke illegal after-hours trades and improperly ~

- exploit market swings in ways that harm ordinary long-term

investors. »




For such long-term investors, rapid trading in and out of funds
raises trading costs and lowers returns; one study published last
Year estimated that such strategies cost long-term investors $5
billion a year. :

The practice of placing late trades, which [non-defendant] Mr.
Stern was accused of at Bank of America, also hurts long-term
shareholders because it dilutes their gains, allowing latecomers to
take advantage of events after the markets closed that were likely
to raise or lower the funds’ share price. [Empha515 added. ]

42.  The Wall Street Journal reported that the Canary Defendants had settled the

charges against them, agreeing to pay a $10 million fine and $30 million in restitution. On

September 5, 2003, The Wall Street Journal reported that the New York Attorney Genera]"s

Office had subpoenaed “a large number of hedge funds” and mutual funds as part of its

investigation, “underscoring concern among investors that the improper trading of mutual-fund
shares could be widespread” and that the SEC, Jjoining the investigation, plans to send letters to
mutual funds holding about 7 5% of assets under man agemem in the U.S. to inquire about their
practices with respect to market-timing and fund-trading practices. |
43.  On Septelﬁber 5, ‘2003, the trade publication, Morningstar reported: “Already this

is the biggest scandal te hit the industry, and it may grow. Spitzef says more companies will be |
accused in the eoming weeks. Thus, investors, }md fund-company executives alike are looking at
some uneasy ﬁmes.” | |

‘ 44. On September '3YO 2063 Alliance Capital Management announced in a press
release publlshed over PR Newswn e that the New York State Aﬁomcy General and the SEC had
contacted Alhance Cap1ta1 Management in eonnectlon with the regulators’ investigation of

market timing and late trading practices in the mutual ﬁmd industry. Additionally, Alliance

,Cépital Management revealed the following:

based on the preliminary results of its own ongoing internal
investigation concerning mutual fund transactions, it kas identified
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conflicts of interest in connection with certain market timing
transactions. In this regard, Alliance Capital has suspended two
of its employees, one of whom is a portfolio manager of the
AllianceBernstein Technology Fund, and the other of whom is
an executive involved with selling Alliance Capital hedge fund
products. [Emphasis added.]

45. On October 1, 2003, an article appearing in The Wall Stréet Jourﬁal identified the
two Alliance Cai)ital Management employees who were suspended as a result of their
involvement in conﬂicts of interests as defendahts Gerald Manné and Charles Schaffran. The
article revealed that Alliance Capital Ménagement had been subpoenaed by the New York State
_Attorne‘y Géneral’s Ofﬁce early on in its -inquiry into the mutual fund industry, and further,
elaborated on defendants Malone and Schaffran’s wrongful and illegal misconduct:

certain investors were allocwed to make rapid trades in a mutual
fund managed by Mr. Malone in exchange for making large
 investments in Alliance hedge funds alse run by Mr. Malonel.]

ok %

Mr. Schaffran is alleged to have helped a broker at a Las Vegas
firm called Security Brokerage Inc. gain the ability to make short-
term trades in shares of Mr. Malone’s mutual fund in exchange for
investments into Mr. Malone’s hedge funds|.]

oA %

As previously reported, Stern’s firm, Canary, appears fo had
arrangements allowing short-term trading with Alliance funds. . .
Meanwhile, according to a copy of trade orders obtained by
[Attorney General Elliot] Spitzer’s office, on the evening of Jan. -
13 this year, Mr. Stern placed late trades through Bank of
America’s trading system to seil 4,178,074 shares of Alliance
Growth and Income Fund, which at the time would have
amounted to an approximately [sic] 311 million transection.
[Emphasis added.] -

In addition to the AllianceBernstein Technology Fund, the article stated that defendant Malone
also managed two technology hedge funds, the ACM Technology Hedge Fund and the ACM

Technology Partners LLP.
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The Prospectuses, Including the AllianceBernstein Growth and Income Fund Prespectus,
Were Matcrially False and Misleading

46.  Plaintiff and each member of the Class were entitled to, and did récéive, one of
the Prospectuseé, each of which contained substantially the same materially false and misleading
- statements regarding the AllianceBemstein‘Funds’ policies on late trading and timed ﬁading, and
acquired shares pursuant tb one or more of the Prospectuses.
| 47.  The Prospectuses contained materially false and misleading statements with |
* respect to how shares are priced, typically represcntiﬁg as follows: |

How the Funds Value Their Shares

The Funds’ net asset value or NAV is calculated at 4 p.m., Eastern
time, each day the Exchange is open for business. To calculate
NAYV, a Fund’s assets are valued and totaled, liabilities are
subtracted, and the balance, called net assets, is divided by the
number of shares outstanding. The Funds value their securities at
their current market value determined on the basis of market
quotations, or, if such quotations are not readily available, such v
other methods as the Funds’ directors believe accurately reflect fair
market value.

48..  The Prospectuses, in explaining how orders are processed, typically represented
that orders received before the end of a business day will receive that day’s net asset value pef
share, while orders received after close will receive the next business day’é price, as follows: |

Your order for purchase, sale, or exchange of shares is priced at
- the next NAV calculnted after your order is received in proper
. form by the Fund. Your purchase of Fund shares may be subject
to an initial sales charge. Sales of Fund shares may be subject to a
contingent deferred sales charge or CDSC.

* %k

HOW TO EXCHANGE SHARES

You may exchange your Fund shares for shares of the same class
of other Alliance Mutual Funds (including AFD Exchange
Reserves, a money market fund managed by Alliance).
Exchanges of shares are made at the next determined NAV,
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49.

without sales or service charges. You may request an exchange
by mail or telephone. You must call by 4:00 p.m., Eastern time, to
receive that day’s NAV. The Funds may modify, restrict, or
terminate the exchange service on 60 days’ written notice. -

HOW TO SELL SHARES

You may “redeem” your shares (i.e., sell your shares to a Fund) on
any day the Exchange is open, either directly or through your
financial intermediary. Your sales price will be the next
determined NAYV, less any applicable CDSC, after the Fund

" receives your sales request in proper form. Normally, proceeds

will be sent to you within 7 days. If you recently purchased your

shares by check or electronic funds transfer, your redemption

payment may be delayed until the Fund is reasonably satisfied that
the check or electronic funds transfer has been collected (which
may take up to 15 days). [Emphasis added.]

The Prqspecfuses falsely stated that Alliance Capital Management actively

safeguards shareholders from the harmful effects of timing. For example, in language that

typically appeared in the Prospcétuses, the March 3 1, 2003 AllianceBernstein Technology Fund

Prospectus and the AllianceBernstein All-Asia Investiment Fund Prospectus stéted as follows\:

50.

* A Fund may refuse any order to puichase shares. In particular, the

Funds reserve the right to restrict purchases of shares (including
through exchanges) when they appear to evidence a pattern of
frequent purchases and sales made in response to short-term
considerations. :

In an effort to discourage frequent trading, mutual funds may _
impose a redemption fee if shares are sold or exchanged within a-
prescribed time. ' '

The Prospectuses failed to disclose and misrepresented the following material and

adverse facts which damaged plaintiff and the other members of the Class:

(a)  that defendants had entered into an agreement allowing the Canary

Defendants and the John Doe Defendants to time their trading of the AHiaﬁccBeniétein Funds

shares and to “late trade”;

-18 -




{(b) that, pﬁrsuant {o that agreement, Canary éxld other favored investors |
regularly tirﬁedand late-traded the AlIiénceBernstein Funds shares; |

(c) that, contrary fo the express representatiéns in the Prospectuses, the
AllianceBernstein Funds enforced their poiicy against frequent traders selectively, i.e., they did
not enforce it against the Canary Defendants and the John Doe Defendénts and they waived thev |
redemption fees that these defendaﬁts should have been required to pay pursuant to sfated
AllianceBernstein Funds poiicies;

(d)  that the Fund -Defex.lda.nts regularly allowed Canary and other favored
investoré to engage in trades that were disruptive to the efficient management of the
Allia11;eBemstein Funds and/or in;reasea fhe AllianceBemnstein Funds’ costs and thereby
r.educed the AllianceBernstein Funds’ actual performance; and

(ej that the amount of compensatién paid by the AlﬁanceBeﬁwtein F und;to
‘Alliance Capital Managem.ent-, because of the AllianceBernstein Funds’ sécret agreement with
Caliary and others, provided substantial additional uﬁdisclosed compensaﬁon to Alliance Capital
Management by the AllianceBernstein Funds and their respeétive shareholders, including

plaintiff and other members of the Class.

Defendants’ Scheme and Fraudulent Course of Business

| 51.  Each defendant is liable for (i) making false statements, or for failing to disclose
materially adverse facts in connection with the pﬁrchase or sale of shares of the
Allian,ceBemstéin Fuﬁds, oi' otherwiée, and/or (ii) participating in a scheme to defraud and/or a
. course of business’that operatéd as a fraud or déceit on purchasers of the’AllianceBernstein
Funds shares during the Claés Period (the “Wrongful Conduct”). This Wrongful Conduc?t

enabled defendants to profit at the expense of plaintiff and the other Class members.
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Additional Scienter Allegations

52.  Asalleged herein, defendants acted with scienter in that defendants knew that the
pﬁblic documents and sfatements issued or disseminated in the name of the AllianceBenwteiﬁ

‘Funds were materially false and misléading; knew that such statements or documents would be
issued or disseminated to the investing public; and knowingly and substantially paﬁicipated or.

' acqﬁiesced in fhé issuapce or disseminvation of such sta;ementé or documents as primary
violations of the federal securitiés laws. Defendants, by ,\/riﬁue of their receipt of information
reflecting the true facts regarding AllianceBernstein Funds, their control éver, and/or receipt
and/or modification of AllianceBernstein Funds’ allegédly materially misleadiﬁg misstatements
and/or their associations with the AllianceBernstein Funds which made them ‘pri_ify to
con'ﬂdentiél proprietary information concemiﬁg the AllianceBchlstein Fuﬁds, participated in the
fraudulent scheme alleged herein. |

53. Additiénally, the Fund Isefen.dants and the Fund Individﬁal Defendants were

‘_highly motivated to allow and facilitate the'wrongful conduct alleged herein and parﬁcipated in
and/or had actual knowledge of the fraudulent conduct alieged here‘in.v In exchange for allowing E
the unlawful_ practices alleged herein, the Fund Defendaﬁts aLnd Fuﬁd Individual Defendants
received, among other things, increased management fees from “sticky assets” and other hidden K

-compensation paid in the forin of inflated interest payments on loans to the Canary and John Doe -
Defendants.

54. The .Canary Defendants and John Doe Defendants were motivaﬁed fo participate
in the wrongful scheme by the enormous profits they derived th_ereb.y.» They systematically

- pursued the scheme with full knowledge of its consequences to other investors. -
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VIOLATIONS OF THE SECURITIES ACT

FIRST CLAIM

Against The AllianceBemstéin Registrants
For Violations of Section 11 Of The Securities Act

55.  Plamtiff ‘repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above as if
fully set forth herein, except that, for purposes of this claim, plaintiff expressly excludes and
disclaims any allegation that could be construed as alleging fraud or intentional or reckless
misconduct and otherwise incorporafes the allegations contained above.

56. This é]aim is broﬁght pursuant to Section 11 of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C.

§ 77k, on behalf of the plaintiff and other members of the Class against the AllimceBemst‘ein |
Registrants.

57. The AlliauceBemstein Registrants are the registrants for the fund shares sold to
plaintiff and the othéf members of the Class and are statutoriiy liable under Section 11. The |
AIIianceB‘ernstein Registrants issued, caused to be issued and participated in the issuance of the
materially false and misleading written statements and/or omissions of material facts that were
contained in the Prospectuses.

| 58.  Plaintiff was provided with the AllianceBernstein Growth & Income Fund
Prospectus and, similarly, prior to purchasin g units of each of the other AlliancevBemstein Funds,
all Class members Iikéwise received the appropriate prospectus. Plaintiff and other Class
- members purchased shares of the AllianceBernstein Funds pursuant or traceable to the felevant
false and inisleading Prospectuses and were damaged _tb.ereby. . |
59.  As set forth herein, the statements contained in the Plfé;pectuses, when they
Abecame effective, were materialty false and misleading for a numbér of reasons, including that

they stated that it was the practice of the AllianceBernstein Funds to monitor and take steps to
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prevent timed trading because of its adverse ‘effect on fund investors, and that the trvading price
was determined as of 4 p.m. each trading day with respect to all investors when, in fact, Canary
and other select investors (the John Does named as defendants hereinj weré allowed to engage in
timed trading and late-trade at the previous day’s pricé. The Prospectuses failed to disclose and |
misrepresented, infer a?z’a, the foliowing material and adverse facts:

(a) that defendants had entered into an unlawful agreement alloﬁng Canary
to time its tréding of the AllianceBernstein Fﬁnds shares and to “late trade;” |

(b)  that, pursuant to that agreemeﬁt, Canary regularly timed and Jate-traded
the AlliénceBemstein Funds shares;

(¢) . that, contrary to the express 1'ep1fe$entations in the Prospectuses, the
AllianceBemstein Funds enforced their policy against frequent traders and late trading
selectively, i.e., they did not _enforce it against Canary,

(d) that the Fund Defendants régularly allowed Canary to er‘lgage‘in trades
that were disfuptive tb tile efﬁ.cient 111anag§men_t of the Allj ance‘Berns‘tein Funds a.nd/}or‘i'ncreas_ed
the AllianceBemstein Funds’ costs and thereby reduced the AllianceBemstéin Funds’ actua] -

. performance; and
(&) the Prbspectuses failed‘.‘to ciisclose that, pursﬁant to the unlawful
agreements, the Fund Defendants, Canary Defendants and John Doe Defendanfs benefited
financially at the expense of the ‘AllianceBernstein F ﬁnds investors inéluding piaintiff and the
other members of the Class. | | |
60. At the time they purchased the AllianceBernstein Funds shares t;écgable to the
- defective Prospectuses, plaintiff and Class members were withoﬁt:knowledge‘ of the facts

concerning the false and misleading statements or omission alleged herein and could not
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reasonably have possessed such knowledge. This claim was brought within the applicable

statute of limitations.

SECOND CLAIM

Against Alliance Holding, Alliance Cerporation, Alliance Capital Management,
and AXA as Control Persons of The AllianceBernstein Registrants
For Violations of Section 15 of the Securities Act -

61.  Plaintiff repeats and reélleges each and every allegation contained above, except
that for purposes of this claim, plaintiff eipressly exclude and disclaim any allegation that could
E b¢ construed as alleging fraﬁd or ixﬁteﬁtional reckless misconduct .anc'i other@‘ise_incorporates the
- allegations containe-d above. | |
| 62. Thls Claim is brought pursuant to Section 15 of the Securities Act against |
Alliance Holding, Alliance’ Cdrporatidn; Aliiance Capital Management, and VAXA, eachasa
control person of the AllianceBernstein Registrants. It is appropriate to treat these defendants as | ‘
a group for pleading p;xlrposes and to presume that the false, misleading, and iﬁcona.plete
iﬁformation conveyed in the AlliauceBemétein leds’ public filings, press releases and other
publicatior{s are the'.collective actions of Aﬁiance I;Iolding, Alliance Corpération, Alliance
. Capital Management, and AXA.
| 63. The AHianceBern-stein Régish‘ams are liable under Section 11 of the Securities
Act as set forth herein. | |
64. Eachof Alliance_I—Iolding Alli‘ancve Corporati.on,' Alliénce Capital Management,
and AXA was a-“éontrol person” of the All.i‘emééBernstein Registrants within the meaniné of
Section 15 éf the Securities Acf by vi,rfue of ifs po_sitidn of operational control and/or ownership.
At the time plaintiff and other members of thg _Cl.as‘s-pu.1rchased‘ svharés of AllianceBernstein

Funds -- by virtue of their positions of control and authority over the AllianceBemstein
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Registrants -- Alliancg'Holding', Alliance Corporation, Alliant:é Capital Management, and AXA
directly and i;].di.féctly, had th,é power and authoi'ity, and exercised the same, td cause the
AIlianc:Berllétein Registrants to engage in the wrongful conduct complained of herein. Alliance
Holding, Alllianc‘e Corporation, Alliance CapitalManagemént, and AXA issued, caused to be -
issued, and participated in the issuance of materially false and misleading statements in the
Prospectuses. |

65 Pursuant to Sectioﬁ 15 of the Securities Act, by reason of the foregoing, Alliance
Holding, Alliance Corporation.,. Alliance Capital Management, and AXA are liable to plaintiff
-and the other members of the Class for the AllianceBernstein Registraxﬁs’ primary violations of
Section 11 of the Securities Act. |

66. By virtué of the foregoing, plaintiff Aﬁd the other memberéof the C_la§s are
entitled to Aalnages againstb Alliance Holding, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital

Management, and AXA.

VIOLATIONS OF THE EXCHANGE ACT

ARPLICABILITY OF) PRESUMPTION OF RELIANCE:
FRAUD-ON-THE-MARKET DOCTRINE

67. Atall relevant times, the market for AllianceBernstein Funds was an efficient
market fof the following reasons, among others: |
| (a) The AllianceBernstein Furids met the requirements for listing, and were
listed and éctively bougl{t and sold through é highly efﬁqient and automated market;
(b)  Asregulated entities, periodic; public reports concerning the

AllianceBernstein Funds were re‘gularly filed with'the. SEC;
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(c) . Persons associated with the AllianceBemste‘:iliFunds regularly
‘communicated with public investors via established market communication mechanisins,
including through regular disseminations of press releases on the national circuits of major
newswire services and through other wide-ranging public disclosures, such as communications
with the ﬁﬁaucia! press and other similar reporting services; and |
| (d) The AllianceBernstein Funds were followed by several securities analysts -
employed by major brokerage firms who wrote reports which were distributed to the sales force
: and certain customers of their respective brokerage firms. Each of thése reports was publicly
‘ availébie and entered the pubiic marketplace.

63. Asa 1'¢su1t of the foregoing, the market for the AllianceBernstein Funds promptly
digested current infonnation. regardh]g AllianceBemstein Funds from all publicly available
sources and reflected such information in the respcctive‘ AllianceBemstein Funds NAV.
Iﬁvestors who purchaSed or ofhcfwise acquired shares or interests in the AllianceBernstein Funds
relied on the integrity of the market for such securities. Under these circumstances, all
purchasers of the AllianceBernstein Funds during the Class Period sﬁfferéd similar injury
through their purchase or acquisition of AllianceBernstein Funds securities at distorted prices

that did not reflect the risks and costs of the continuing course of conduct alleged herein, and a -

presumption of reliance applies.

THIRD CLAIM

Violation Of Section 10(b) Of The Exchange Act
And Rule 10b-5 Promulgated Thereunder Against All Defendants

69.  Plaintiff repeats and reaﬂegés each and every allegation contained above as if

fully set forth herein except for Claims brought pursuant to the Securities Act.
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70.  During the Class Period, each of the défeﬁdants carried out a plan, scheme and
course of conduct which was intended to and, throughout the Class Period, did deceive' the
investing public, including plaintiff and the other Class members, as alleged herein and cause
plainﬁff and other members of the Class to purchase AllianceB ernstein Funds sharés or interests
at distorted prices and otherwise suffered damages. Infurth.eﬁnce of this unlaw.ﬁﬂ scheme, plan
and course 6f conduct, defendants, and each of lther’n, toak the actions set forth herein.

71, Defendallts (1) ernployed devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud; (ii) made
untrue statements of material fact and/or omitted to state mat_en'al facts necessary to make the
statements not misleading; and (ii1) engaged in acts, p‘ractices, and a course of business which
- operated as a fraud a_nd deceit upon the purchasers of the AllianceBernstein Funds® securities,
including plaintiff and other members of the Claés, in an effort to enrich themselves through
undisclosed maﬁipulative trading tactics by which they wrongfully appropriated
AllianceBernstein Funds® assets and otherwise diétorted the pricing of their securities in violation
o-f Section IO(b) of the E*cﬁange Act and Rule 10b-5. All defendants are sued as primary
participants in the wrongful and illegal conduct and séhemé charged herein.

72. Defendanfs, indivi‘dually and in concert, direc’;ly and indirectly, by the use, meaﬁs
or instrumentalities of interstate commercé and/or of the mails, engaged and participated in a |
: continuqus course of conduct to conceal adverse material information about the
AllianceBernstein Funds® operations, as speciﬁed herein.

73, These defendants eﬁlployed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud and a
course éf conduct and scheme as alleged herein to unlawfully manipulate a.nd profit froni
secretly timed and late trading and thereby engaged in transactions, practices and a course of

business which. operated as a fraud and deceit upon plaintiff and members of the Class.
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74. The defendants had actual k_nowledge of the misrepresentations and omissions of
material facts set forth hereiﬁ, or acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that they failed to
ascertain and to disclose such facts, e?en though such facts were available fo them. Such
.defendants’ material misrepresentations and/or omissions were done knbwingly or recklessly and
for the purpose and effect of concealing the truth.

| 75. Asa result of the di.sseminatioxj of the materially false and misleading infolmati‘on‘
and failure to disclose material facts, as set Vforth above, thé market price of the |
AllianceBemstein Funds securities were distorted duriﬁg the Class Period such that they did not
| reﬂéct the risks and costs of the continuing course of coﬁducf alleged herein. In ignorance of
these facts that market prices of the shares wél'e distorted, and relying directly or indirectly on
the false and misleading statements made by the Fund Defendanfs, or upon the integrity of the
market in which the securities trade, and/or on the absence of méter,ial aﬂverse information tllat
_ was known to or reckléssly disregarded by defendants but not disclbsed m public statements by
defenaants during the Cléss Period, plaintiff and thé other members of the Class acquired the
shares -or fxlteresté ih the AllianceBernstein Funds during the Class Period ai distorted pﬁces and
.were damaged ‘thereby. |

76. At the time of ‘sa‘id 1rﬁsi‘eprésentation$ and omissions, plaintiff aﬁd other members
of the Clasé were ignorant of tlléir falsity, and believed tﬁém to be true. Had plaintiff band the
other membérs c;f the Class and tﬁe marketplace known of the truth‘co'ﬁceming the
AllianceBemstein Funds; operations, which wére not disclosed b‘y defen&ants, plainti,ff and other
members of the Class \%vould not. have purchased or otherwise acquii'ed their shares or, if they had
acquired such shares or >other intereéts during the Class‘Perio‘d, they would not have done so af

the distorted prices which they paid.
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77. | By virtue of the foregoing, defendants have violated Section 10(b) of the
Exchange Act, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder.

78.  Asadirect and proximate result of defendants’ wrongful conduct, plaintiff and
the other members of the Class suffered damages in coﬁneﬁtion with their respective purchases

and sales of the AllianceBernstein Funds shares during the Class Period.

FOURTH CLAIM

Against AXA (as a Contro} Person of Alliance Corperation); Alliance Corporation (as a
Control Person of Alliance Holding); Alliance Holding (as a Control Person of Alliance
Capital Management); Alliance Capital Mapagement (as a Centrol Persen of ‘

AllianceBernstein Registrants); and AllianceBernstein Registrants (as a Control Person of
the AllianceBernstein Funds) Fer Violations of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act

79.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above as if
fully set forth herein except for Claims broﬁght pursuant to the Securities Act.
80. ’fhis Claim is brought pursuant to Section 20(2) of the Exchange Act against
AXA as a control person of Alliance Cofporation, Alliance Corporaﬁon asa control person of
. Alliance Holding, Alliance Holding as a control person of the Alliance Capital Maﬁagement,
Alliance Capital Management as a cbntrol persoln of AllianceBernstein Registrants, ah.d
AllianceB ernstein Registrants as a control person of the AllianceBernstein Funds.
81. It is appropriate td treat thése defendants as a group for pleading purposes and to
presume that the matenally false, mlsleadmg, and mcomplele information conveyed in the
| A]hanceBemstem Funds’ pubhc ﬁhngs press releases and other pubhcatlons are the collecuve
actions of AXA, AJhance Corp01 ation, Alliance I Ioldlng, Alhance Capltal Management, and
) AlhanceBemstem Registrants. |
82. Bachof AXA, Al]jance Corporation, Alliance Holding, Al‘liance Capital

Management, and AllianceBernstein Registrants acted as controlling persons of the
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AllianceBernstein F uﬁds within the meaning of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act for the
1easons a]Ieged herein. By virtue of their operational ahd management control of the

: AllianceBérnstein Funds’ respecﬁve businesses and systematic involvement in the fraudulent
scheme allleged herein, AXA, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Holding, Alliance Capital -
Managemént, and AllianceBernstein Registrants each had the power 1o influence and control and
did influence aﬁd control, directly 6r indirectly, the decisiqn-making and actions of the
Allian.ceBerﬁstein Funds, including the content and dissemination of the various statements

* which plaintiff contends are false and misleading. AXA, Alliance Corporation, Alliance

HOIdin.g, Alliance Capital Ma.nagement, and AllianceBernstein Registrants had the ability to

prevent the issuance of the statements alleég:d to be false and misleading or cause sﬁch‘ :

statements to be corrected.

83. . Inparticular, each of AXA, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Holding, Alliance

Capital Management, and AllianceBernstein Registrants had direct and supervisory involvement

in the opgrations of the AllianceBernstein Funds and, therefore, is presumed to have had the
power to control or influence tlie pmicular transactions giving rise to the secﬁrities violations as
al]éged herein, and exercised the same.

84.  Asset forth above, AXA, Alliance beporation, Alliance Holding, A]_liaﬁce'
Capital Management, and AllianceB ernsteih Registrants each violated Section 10(b) and Rulle
10b-5 by their acts and omissions as alleged in this Complaint. By virtue of their positions as |
controlling persons, AXA, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Hoiding, Alliance Capital
Management, and AllianceBernétein Registrants are liable pursuant to Section 20(a) of the -

 Exchange Act. As a direct and proximate result of defendants’ wrongful conduct, plaintiff and
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other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their purchases of

AllianceBernstein Funds securities during the Class Period.

VIOLATIONS OF THE INVESTMENT ADVISERS ACT

FIFTH CLAIM

Fer Violations of Section 206 of The Investment Advisers
Act 0f 1940 Against BACAP [15 1.S.C. §80b-6 and 15 U.S.C. §80b-15]

85.  Plaintiff repeats and reai]eges each and every allegation contained above asif
fully set forth herein. |
~ 86, This Count is based upon Section 215 of the Investment Advisers Act, 15 U.S.C.}
§80b-15. o
~ 87.  Alliance Capital Management served as an “iﬁvestment adviser” to plaintiff and
other memberé of the Class pursuant to the‘. Investment Advisers Act.
88. Asa fiduciary pursuant to the Investment Advisers Act, Aﬂimcé Capital
‘Management was required to serve plaintiff and otht;r .members of the Class in a maﬁner in
accordance with the federal ﬁdu.ciary standards set forth in Section 206 of the Investment
Advisers Act, 15 U.S.C. § 80b-6, governing the conduct of imlzestment advisers.
89. | During the Class Period, Alliance Capital Management breached its fiduciary
duties owed to plaintiff and the other members of the Class by engaging ina deceptive
~contrivance, séheme, practice and course of cbnd,uct pursuant,to. which they quov;fixlgly and]or
recklessly engaged in acts, transactions, practices and courses of business which operated as a |
fraud upon plaintiff and other members of the Class. As detailed above, Alﬁaﬁce Cai)ital
Ma.nagemént allowed the Canary and Jobn Doe Defendants to secretly engage in late trading and

timing of the AllianceBemstein Funds shares. The purposes and effect of said schere, practice
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- and course of cohduct was te enrich BACAP, among other defendants, at the expense of plaintiff |
and other members of the Class. |

90. AJIiance Capital Management breached ifs‘ fiduciary duty owed to plaintiff and
the Class members by engaging in the aforesaid transactions, practices and courses of business
knowingly or recklessly so as to constitute 2 deceit and fraud upon plaintiff and the Class
“members. |

91.-  Albance Capital Management is liable as a direct participant in the wrongs
complained of herein. Alliance Capital Management, because of its position of authori.fy and
control »over,Athe All_ia.neeBemstein Regi.stranté was able to and did: .(1)>contr01 the content of the
Prospectuses; aﬁd (2) control the operations of the AllianceBernstein Funds.

92.  Alliance Capital Ma115gement had a duty to (i) disseminate accurate and truthful
_information with respect to the AllianceBernstein Funds; and (2) to truthfully aﬁd uniformly act
in accordance with its stated policies and fiduciary ‘respbor‘lsibilities to plaintiff and members of -
the Class. AJ.lianee Capital Management participated in the wrongdoing cemplained of hereiﬁ in
‘order to prevent plaintiff and otﬁer me_rnbers of ‘the‘ Class from knowing of Alliance Capital
Management’s breaches of fiduciary duties including: (1) increasing its profitability at plaintiff’s
other members of the ClaeS"expense by allowing Canary and the John Doe Defendants to . |
secretly time and late trade the AllianceBemstein Funds shares; 'e.nd (2) placing its interests |
ahead of the interests of plaintiff and othef _r‘nembers- of the Class.

93.  As aresult of Alliance Capital Me11age111ellt’s multiple breaches of its fiduciary .
duties owed plaintiff and other m_embere of the Claés, plaintiff ar_1d other ‘Class members were

damaged.




94.  Plaintiff and other Class members are entitled to rescind their investment advisory
contracts with Alliance Capital Management and recover all fees paid in connection with their

enrollment pursuant to such agreements.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

: WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays for relief and judgmeﬁt, as follows:

(®) Detennihing that this action is a proper class action and appointing
- plaintiff as Lead Plaintiff and their counsel as Léad Counsel for the Class and certifying them as
class representatives under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure;

(b) - Awarding compensatory damages in favor of plainﬁﬁ' and other Class
members against all defendants, jointly and se\)erally, for all damages sustained as a result of
defendants’ wrongdoiﬁg, in an amoimt,to bg proven at trial, including interest thereon;

) avs./ardin:g plaintiff and other members of the Class rescission of their
contracts wifh Alliance Capita]l Management, inclﬁdil}g recovery of all fees which would
otherwise ap.ply,‘and recovery of all fees paid to Alliance Capital Management pursuant to such
agreements; | |

(d)  causing the Fund Defendants to account for wrongfully gotten gains,
profits énd éompeﬁsatioﬁ and to make restitufion of samé and disgorgé them,;

| (e) Awérding plaintiff and the Class their reasonable costs and expenses
incurred in this acﬁoﬁ, inclﬁding cdunsel feg‘s and expén fees; and |

(f) Such o_ther and further relief as is just and proper.
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JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiff hereby demand a trial by jury.

Dated: October 17, 2003 _
' S GOODKIND LABATON RUDOFF &
SUCHAROW

. / g

C 1 {fpher e Ife?(CK2347)
100 Park Avenue, 12" Floor
New York, NY 10017-5563
(212) 907-0700 '
(212) 818-0477

- Michael D. Donovan
Donovan Searless, LLC
1845 Walnut Street
. Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103
(215) 732-6067
(215) 732-8060

Paul S. Scarlato .
Weinstein Kitchepoff Scarlato

Karon & Goldman Ltd.
1845 Walnut Street ,
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103 - -
(215) 545-7200
(215) 545-6535

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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Donovar Seartes, LLC
1845 Wainur Szreer
Suite 1700

. Philadslphic, PA 19103
(215) 732-6067
wwn.donovaHIearies, com

CERT[FICATIDN OF NAMZED PLAINTIFF UNDER

i, Tracy Silverman, declare as follows with respect to claims under the federal saeurities
laws alleged: ' |
1 1 geek 1o join as one of the plaintiffs named in the foregoing ar:uon ("ﬁm Action™),
2, 1 hm reviewed the Action with my counsel and h;vé anthorized our joinder, -
3. 1 did pot purchase siock in AllianceBemstein Growth & Income Fuod af the
direction of my counsal er in érda 1o participm in any private securities action,
a4 I am wilhng to eeTve s representative pacties on behalf of the class, inchuding
| providing testimony at depasitions and triel, if) necesLary, |
5. The following sets forth all of my tramsactions during the class Pmod in
AmanceBemstem Growth & Tncome Pund stock:
EBQHA&E.M TYPE OF ACCOUNT &_QE.SHABEE msam nm
Purchases | RA - o czmmtﬁ_‘i:ﬂ{ | atnummuspomts
| | during class period




6. The following scis foii afl fuderal secudties sctions filed during the past three

years in which we haﬁz served or songht to serve B8 representative parties om behalf of o class:
Nons. | :

7. We will not accept any payment for serving ag represantative parties pn bahelt“af
the class bayond jts pro rata share of sny taéoveuy w‘ the clase, plus reagsoneble cosig and
expenses (inclading lost weges) directly relating to the representstion of the class, exccpt as
apWM by the Court. | ‘

We declare under penslty of perjuty that the forppoding I8 true and comrect.  Signed at
Philadelphis; Pannsylvania, this Ot day of Ogtober, 2003. |

%M

Tacy Silverrn

Donavaen Searies, LLC
1845 Padmus Streer

Sieize 1100 -

.Fk;!afa{p};fa, FA 10703
(215), 7320067

Mdon ovamsearles.com




